
 
 
 
 
 

 

August 11, 2020 
 
Deb Reid 
Executive Director 
Niagara Regional Police Service Board 
5700 Valley Way 
Niagara Falls, ON L2E 1X8 
 
Sent via email: Deb.Reid@niagarapolice.ca 
 
Re: Motion regarding Body Cameras for Police Officers - Comments from City of St. 
Catharines Anti-Racism Advisory Committee 
Our File 35.65.75 
 
Dear Ms. Reid, 
 
At its meeting held on August 10, 2020, St. Catharines City Council approved the 
following motion: 
 

WHEREAS St. Catharines City Council asked for advice from the Anti-Racism Advisory 

Committee on body cameras for police and other reforms;  

  

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that City Council endorse the following 

recommendations from the Anti-Racism Advisory Committee: 

 

Training 

 Increase Crisis Intervention Training to being offered at least 4 times a year or 

until as close to 100% of front line officers as possible at any given time would 

have completed the training;  

 Add cross-cultural mental health training to its Crisis Intervention Training;  

 Add implicit bias and anti-racism trainings in its refresher trainings and that 

these trainings be led by experts from equity seeking groups, along the lines of 

the African Canadian Legal Clinic's recommendations to the Ipperwash Inquiry:  

“That police forces develop an anti-racism curriculum and training program to be 

incorporated into any existing training programs on use of force and which will 

be mandatory for recruits, new officers, and serving officers. The training should 

be designed and delivered by independent experts in anti-racism to ensure a full 

understanding of racially biased policing, racial discrimination and the racialized 

communities police serve, particularly with respect to use of force. This training 

should be provided as a refresher on a regular basis. The training program 

should be independently and regularly evaluated to assess its efficacy with 

respect to effecting anti-racist behavioral and attitudinal change.”  
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Re-assessing police service standards to shift its budget 

 The NRPS Chief and Board re-assess “adequate policing” requirements based 

on removing welfare checks, mental health, and suicide threat calls, as well as 

foot patrols that are only demanded because of perception;  

 That the Niagara Regional municipality shift these funds from the reduction of 

the NRPS budget to a dispatched civilian service such as the EMS;  

 

Civilian Review 

 The establishment of a local purely civilian (no former police officers) body 

including members from equity seeking groups with oversight, disciplinary 

powers, and the power to refer charges for prosecution over police officers;  

 Establish the office of a purely civilian (no former police officers) Ombudsperson 

with full access to police records and data; 

 

Releasing Statistics  

 Publish online details of police-reported hate crimes for each incident including 

location, date and time, the protected group which was attacked, and the nature 

of the crime;  

 Publish online the use of force by race data required to be submitted to the 

Ministry of the Solicitor General under the Anti-Racism Act;  

 Extend the collection of race data to traffic stops and publish online these 

statistics as well as the outcome (any charges) for traffic stops;  

 

Hiring 

 Increase diversity hiring to at least 15% of the recruiting class over three years, 

and further as per the African Canadian Legal Clinics recommendation to the 

Ipperwash Inquiry:  

“That police recruits be screened for prejudicial and racially discriminatory 

attitudes, similar to screening already being done for personality attributes, 

criminal record, and family background. That police forces be encouraged to 

retain independent employment equity experts to develop concrete, measurable 

and attainable goals to increase the number of racialized people, particularly 

African Canadians and Aboriginals, especially in positions of responsibility, in 

order to achieve a “critical mass” of representation and diversity to promote 

cultural and organizational change”;  

 That these independent employment equity experts undertake a comprehensive 

review of the hiring, recruitment, selection, and management practices of the 

NRPS;  

  



   
 
 

 
 

8 Can’t Wait Campaign 

 Require all officers to have a duty to intervene against excessive use of force or 

abuse;  

 Prohibit shooting at moving vehicles;  

 

Performance Reviews 

 As per the African Canadian Legal Clinic's recommendation to the Ipperwash 

Inquiry:  

  “That police forces ensure that complaints and concerns against police officers 

relating to use of force, particularly when the complainant is racialized, are 

reflected and factored into the assessment of each officer’s performance review 

and or promotions.”; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that St. Catharines City Council call on the Niagara 
Region, through the Police Services Board, to immediately begin the process of 
implementing the above recommendations; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this motion be forwarded to all local municipalities; 
the offices of all Niagara-area MPPs and MPs; the offices of the Attorney General of 
Ontario Doug Downey, the Attorney General of Canada David Lametti and Federal 
Public Safety Minister Bill Blair; and request comment from the Solicitor General of 
Ontario Sylvia Jones. FORTHWITH” 

 

If you have any questions, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at extension 1524. 
 

 
 
Bonnie Nistico-Dunk, City Clerk 
Legal and Clerks Services, Office of the City Clerk 
:em 

 
Cc. Hon. Bill Blair, Minister of Public Safety and Emergency Preparedness, Bill.Blair@parl.gc.ca  

Hon. David Lametti, Minister of Justice and Attorney General of Canada, David.Lametti@parl.gc.ca  
Hon. Doug Downey, Attorney General, doug.downey@pc.ola.org 
Chris Bittle, MP - St. Catharines, Chris.Bittle@parl.gc.ca   
Dean Allison, MP - Niagara West, Dean.Allison@parl.gc.ca   
Vance Badawey, MP - Niagara Centre, Vance.Badawey@parl.gc.ca   
Tony Baldinelli, MP - Niagara Falls, Tony.Baldinelli@parl.gc.ca   
Jennifer Stevens, MPP - St. Catharines, JStevens-CO@ndp.on.ca   
Jeff Burch, MPP - Niagara Centre, JBurch-QP@ndp.on.ca   
Wayne Gates, MPP - Niagara Falls, wgates-co@ndp.on.ca   
Sam Oosterhoff, MPP - Niagara West-Glanbrook, sam.oosterhoff@pc.ola.org    
Kenneth Gansel, Chair, Niagara Regional Police Service Board 
Ann-Marie Norio, Regional Clerk, Ann-Marie.Norio@niagararegion.ca 
Niagara Area Municipalities 
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